GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINME CONVENTION, SHOW &

Board of Directors

Wednesday, November 29, 2006
8:00 a.m. —9:30 a.m.
DeVos Place® — Monroe Meeting Rooms B & C
303 Monroe Avenue, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA
I. Call to Order
Convention
. ' IL. Approval of November 9, 2006, Minutes Action
- III. Committee Reports
Stoven Hoacock a. Operations Committee
Chitman 1. CVB Report Information

Birgit Klohs
Clif Charles b. Finance Committee

i. Approval of SMG October 2006 Financial Action

Gary Mclnerney

Statements — DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli il. Approval of CAA October 2006 Financial Statements Action
Lew Chamberlin iil. Audited Financial Statements and Supplementary Action
Information for Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
iv. SMG Food & Beverage October 2006 Information
Revenue and Commission Report
IV. Kent County Sports Commission Funding Request Action
V. City of Grand Rapids Facility Use Request Action
VI. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information

VII. Public Comment

VIII. Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, January 24, 2007

IX. Adjournment

T I'I.

VAN ANDEL

HR Happy Holidays!

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-
616.742.
Fax 616.742.




Item 11

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Tuesday, November 7, 2006

L. Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 9:20 a.m. Chairman Heacock presided

and Susan Waddell recorded in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs.

Attendance
Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
Clif Charles
George Heartwell
Gary McInemey
Joseph Tomaselli
Members Absent: Birgit Klohs
Staff/Others: Daryl Delabbio Kent County
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Bob Mihos Kent County
Steve Miller SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting
II. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the September
27, 2006, meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

IIL Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee.

1. Operations Committee Update

The Committee received a report from Todd Johnson who announced that the new host desk for DeVos
Place® has been installed, effectively allowing the grand gallery to be open to the public. The host desk
will be staffed by DK Security personnel from 8:00 a.m. — 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, plus all
event hours. The host desk will serve as a focal point for information and directions, as well as a security

checkpoint.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2006 - 2

The Committee took action on painting the vulnerable areas of the Van Andel Arena® lobby. Currently,
the lobby wall above the granite is painted with a product called zolotone. Zolotone is a flat paint
containing stucco specks that is extremely hard to repaint and patch, in addition to being costly. The cost
to repaint the lobby is $20,000. SMG requested approval to paint areas of the lobby wall with a flat gray
paint. The lobby walls would have a 3-layer effect: granite at the bottom, flat gray paint in the middle,

and zolotone at the top. The Committee approved the request, provided that the design professionals at
Progressive AE to review the concept.

1i. CVB Report

Mr. Wilson announced that the CVB has booked the American Jail Association convention for the year
2013. Convention delegates will utilize 5,700 room nights and have an economic impact of $1.6 million.

b. Finance Committee
1. SMG September 2006 Financial Statements for DeVos Place®
and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended September 30, 2006. After review and
discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

il. CAA September 2006 Financial Statements

Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to approve the CAA F inancial Statements for
the period ended September 30, 2006. After review and discussion, the motion was unanimously
adopted.

iii. Special-Purpose Financial Statements for the Years Ended June 30,
2006 and 2005 — DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®, as Managed by SMG

The special-purpose financial statements are issued to test the validity of the SMG incentive fee
calculations. Deloitte & Touche has found the SMG operations to be well controlled and has provided
“clean” audits for both facilities. Mr. Machuta added that the information in the audits is very similar to
that provided in the June 2006 preliminary financial statements.

Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to accept and approve the Special-Purpose
Financial Statements as of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, and Independent Auditors’
Report — DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®, as managed by SMG. The motion was unanimously
adopted.

1v. SMG Food & Beverage September 2006 Revenue and Commission Report
Mr. Machuta presented the report and referred to the per cap comparison. A fiscal year 2006 concert

average was used as a comparison for the Eric Clapton concert, since this was his first visit. Otherwise,
the month-to-date totals are consistent with the budget figures.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
November 7, 2006 - 3

IV. CAA Initiated Events

Mr. Mclnerney is spearheading an effort to identify additional potential streams of revenue. One idea
presented was a wine and food festival that would be sponsored by the CAA. A contingent of industry
professionals traveled to the Ottawa Wine & Food Festival held last weekend with the intent of assessing
the viability for our marketing. The group concluded that such an event would be worth the risk and
investment would benefit the community. A full report will be presented at the January 2007 meeting.

V. Ticket Policy Discussion

Mr. McInerney stated that he has received complaints from patrons who were standing in line to purchase
tickets for the upcoming Bob Seger concert and received less-than-favorable seating. Mr. Mclnerney
wondered if the CAA should adopt a ticket policy to either encourage or discourage people from standing
in line or to set aside a certain number of premium tickets for those waiting in line.

Mr. MacKeigan explained that the artists own the tickets, except for the premium seating and suites. In
this instance, Bob Seger’s manager requested that tickets be set aside for all patrons standing in line and
the issue was more pronounced because of the demand for Seger tickets. Because of health, public safety,
and sanitation issues, SMG tries to discourage lines for all concerts. The best way to purchase tickets is
on-line through TicketMaster.

Mr. MacKeigan addressed the issue of ticket scalping inasmuch as he has received complaints that Seger
tickets are being offered at on-line auctions for hundreds of dollars. Currently the practice of selling and
purchasing tickets above cost on-line is legal. In fact, some artists hold on-line auctions at their websites
to prevent scalping and to gauge the true return on the tickets. SMG will cancel a ticket if it becomes
known that a scalper has a ticket belonging to a premium seat holder.

VI SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

V. Public Comment

None.

VI.  Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, November 29, 2006, 8:00 a.m., location TBD.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



Item IILb.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
SALES
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

173 427 600 624 (24)
110,067 603,598 713,665 727,780 (14,115)
497,332 1,785,985 2,283,317 2,323,417 (40,100)
554,583 1,414,145 1,968,728 2,007,628 (38,900)
1,051,915 3,200,130 4,252,045 4,331,045 (79,000)

53,096 181,310 234,406 231,000 3,406
1,105,011 3,381,440 4,486,451 4,562,045 (75,594)
43,250 111,449 154,699 140,906 (13,793)
74,642 136,017 210,659 205,722 (4,937)

24,720 50,030 74,750 78,379 3,629

411,843 912,748 1,324,591 1,343,743 19,152

274,218 675,701 949,919 961,288 11,369
26,657 48,647 75,304 73,588 (1,716)

74,741 170,126 244,867 245,772 905
533,599 1,718,045 2,251,644 2,238,289 (13,355)

1,463,670 3,822,763 5,286,433 5,287,687 1,254
(358,659) (441,323) (799,982) (725,642) (74,340)
133,447 133,447 153,702 (20,255)
(358,659) (574,770) (933,429) (879,344) (54,085)

The bottom line of DeVos Place performed at expected levels for the month, and
has continued to do so through the first part of the fiscal year. Overall, the facility
is still running below budget on revenues, however, offset by continued savings

in expenses. As the expense savings has more to do with timing, it is still

anticipated that DeVos will end slightly behind original expectations. From Abraham
to Jesus was originally an October event, however, moved to November. Revenue

was offset by the unbudgeted Landscaping tradeshow, which should allow the
facility to show a positive variance when looking at the two months combined.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending October 31
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH October October October
Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 70 88 80
Attendance 51,852 79,250 56,199
Direct Event Income $230,815 $297,283 $339,003
Ancillary Income 266,996 196,459 213,903
Other Income 14,490 19,250 11,003
Indirect Expenses (406,789) (409,088) (363,236)
Net Income $105,511 $103,904 $200,672
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 173 206 186
Attendance 110,067 156,950 111,482
Direct Event Income $497,332 $626,105 $647,735
Ancillary Income 554,583 553,782 541,640
Other Income 53,096 77,000 30,828
Indirect Expenses (1,463,670) (1,583,292) (1,336,060)
Net Income ($358,659) ($326,405) ($115,858)

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell below budgeted expectations for the month. Most of the shortfall came
from a shift of the Museum event from October to November. Other events hosted during
the month held consistent with expectations.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in well head of expectations. Ancillary spending on the Gordon Food
Service event was above expectations, and the unbudgeted Landscaping Tradeshow was
a very strong ancillary revenue producing event.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses held consistent with expectations.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

----------------- CURRENT- -~ === === === mcmmmmme mmmo——mmecmmeeenYTDm - mmmmmmm oo mm e canen e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 242,064 296,500 316,946 555,317 623,575 639,648
SERVICES INCOME <11,249> 783 22,057 <57, 985> 2,530 8,088
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 230,815 297,283 339,003 497,332 626,105 647,735
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 98,919 73,587 62,473 206,262 208,722 199,769
NOVELTY 437 1,900 1,131 2,110 3,400 1,131
ELECTRICAL 71,572 38,987 68,431 121,328 115,201 124,374
OTHER ANCILLARY 96,067 81,985 81,867 224,882 226,459 216,365
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 266,996 196,459 213,903 554,583 553,782 541,640
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 497,811 493,742 552,905 1,051,914 1,179,887 1,189,376
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 14,490 19,250 11,003 53,096 77,000 30,828
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 512,301 512,992 563,908 1,105,011 1,256,887 1,220,204
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,019 11,743 10,693 43,250 46,972 40,574
FINANCE 16,613 17,143 15,841 74,642 68,572 68,811
MARKETING 2,565 6,531 2,424 24,720 26,124 14,615
OPERATIONS 120,551 102,548 98,779 411,843 473,132 352,561
EVENT MANAGEMENT 61,189 79,859 54,607 274,218 319,436 255,250
BOX OFFICE 6,051 6,133 6,148 26,657 24,532 26,114
SALES 18,194 20,481 9,323 74,741 81,924 45,255
OVERHEAD 169,608 164,650 165,422 533,599 542,600 532,880
INDIRECT EXPENSES 406,789 409,088 363,236 1,463,670 1,583,292 1,336,060
NET OPERATING INCOME 105,511 103,904 200,672 <358,659> <326,405> <115,856>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 105,511 103,904 200,672 <358,659> <326,405> <115, 856>

5



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

---------------- CURRENT------------eceee wo-------w-=--YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 0 "] 1,656 13,672 0 7,599
Changeover Setup Billed 1,083 0 952 1,418 ] 3,286
Stagehands Billed 143,619 122,400 158,548 275,078 233,250 280,784
Security Billed 10,915 25,570 25,148 29,938 50,930 57,702
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 15, 845 24,550 18,133 25,733 36,550 27,744
Box Office Billed 1,800 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,700 3,300
Ticketing Service Billed 11,218 28,550 15,901 21,165 45,765 18,999
City Police Fire Billed 2,975 300 3,570 4,975 300 13,880
EMT Medical Billed 3,450 2,000 3,650 5,969 5,047 7,175
Cleaning Billed 2,418 0 1,824 2,442 0 1,824
Insurance Billed 368 0 1,003 2,431 [ 1,583
Group Sales Commissions Billed 112 4] ] 112 0 0
Telephone Billed 4,820 7,350 10,775 10,985 9,300 16,780
Other Production Billed 5,733 0 4,776 19,175 0 9,745
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 204,355 212,720 248,436 416,093 384,842 450,401
Advertising Expense [} (v} 1,616 14,081 0 7,729
Stagehand Wages 133,115 118,728 143,146 256,052 224,555 256,248
Contracted Security Expense 18,712 25,570 24,376 55,073 46,630 54,871
Ushers & T/T Wages 11,091 17,185 12,693 18,013 24,850 19,421
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,099 1,700 2,192 2,179 3,350 3,056
Ticket Service Charge Expense 4,705 11,420 5,927 8,699 17,620 6,694
City Police Fire Expense 2,596 300 3,570 4,763 300 13,880
EMT Medical Expense 2,614 1,950 3,082 5,102 3,647 6,421
Cleaning Wages 2,418 0 0 2,418 0 0
Contracted Cleaning Expense 33,761 35,084 22,906 85,276 61,360 60,864
Insurance Expense 336 0 826 2,118 0 1,292
Group Sales Commissions 67 0 0 207 0 0
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,205 0 2,694 2,746 ] 4,195
Production Expense 3,885 0 3,351 17,351 0 7,643
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 215,604 211,937 226,379 474,079 382,312 442,313

NET SERVICE INCOME <11,249> 783 22,057 <57,985> 2,530 8,088




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended October 31,2006

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 59 47 48,775 33,050 623,783 469,797
Consumer/Gated Shows 7 33 7,837 31,900 34,776 208,450
Devos Performance Hall 29 30 29,313 59,750 140,013 162,818
Ballroom Exclusive 14 18 7,735 14,200 78,366 105,281
Other 64 78 16,407 18,050 174,944 233,541
GRAND TOTALS 173 206 110,067 156,950 - 1,051,882 1,179,887
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 34.10% 22.82% 44.31% 21.06% 59.30% 39.82%
Consumer/Gated Shows 4.05% 16.02% 7.12% 20.32% 3.31% 17.67%
Devos Performance Hail 16.76% 14.56% 26.63% 38.07% 13.31% 13.80%
Ballroom Exclusive 8.09% 8.74% 7.03% 9.05% 7.45% 8.92%
Other 36.99% 37.86% 14.91% 11.50% 16.63% 19.79%



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 1,147,089
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 674,341
PREPAID EXPENSES 147,752
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,969,182

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 1,969,182

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 241,823
ACCRUED EXPENSES 326,450
DEFERRED INCOME 63,945
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 883,897
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,516,115
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <750, 000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 345,823
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,215,904
NET INCOME (LOSS) <358,659>
TOTAL EQUITY 453,067

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,969,182




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended October 31, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

98,044
217,881
49,967
22,073
137,898

110,963

22,795

5,736
1,696
5,002
2,286

674,341



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

----------------- CURRENT----------v-m--coe cemccrccccccrrnmeceYTDmeocommmeoe e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 68,167 70,649 57,010 279,045 282,596 248,119
Part-Time 13,675 13,167 14,471 28,335 52,668 29,547
Wages-Trade 157,987 119,523 163,289 400,616 478,092 388,176
Sales Commissions Group Sales 67 0 0 67 0 0
Auto Allowance 2,121 0 1,971 8,483 0 7,883
Auto Expense 150 2,271 150 600 9,084 600
Taxes & Benefits 52,065 52,188 54,455 166,420 208,752 165,937
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement ' <163,819> <111,581> <174,368> <354,791> <446,324> <348,993>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 130,412 146,217 116,978 528,775 584,868 491,270
Contracted Security 20,147 26,917 18,372 82,316 107,668 78,682
Contracted Cleaning 1,886 0 838 12,634 0 6,976
Other Contracted Services 186 200 224 893 800 894
Travel & Entertainment 1,291 1,209 1,582 3,873 4,836 5,390
Corporate Travel [ 417 0 0 1,668 0
Meetings & Conventions 2,361 1,958 1,468 9,595 9,332 5,856
Dues & Subscriptions 690 300 367 2,521 1,200 2,387
Employee Training 375 833 0 7,082 3,332 1,300
Miscellaneous Expense 920 0 0 90 0 0
Computer Expense 2,440 6,250 3,685 21,309 25,000 13,215
Professional Fees 3,062 3,042 2,200 12,118 12,168 8,800
Marketing & Advertising 1,357 4,217 1,426 15,630 16,868 6,176
Box Office Expenses 79 0 14 43 0 <58>
Small Equipment [ o] 0 0 0 389
Trash Removal 4,783 2,500 2,984 9,088 10,000 5,373
Equipment Rental 1,475 1,000 1,267 5,299 4,000 5,272
Landscaping 937 833 150 5,161 3,332 2,586
Exterminating 20,034 1,000 1,239 23,104 48,440 22,212
Cleaning 0 0 0 4,500 17,000 9,600
Repairs & Maintenance 34,942 36,462 29,349 117,458 145,848 102,022
Supplies 15,545 18,250 21,465 94,258 73,000 57,076
Bank Service Charges 1,690 1,500 1,598 4,885 6,000 4,599
Insurance 21,896 22,232 22,470 68,050 88,928 73,290
Licenses & Fees [ 0 0 138 0 0
Printing & Stationary 414 917 0 648 3,668 0
Office Supplies 497 750 1,728 3,777 3,000 5,011
Postage 518 417 150 1,628 1,668 844
Parking Expense 50 1,500 1,719 6,378 6,000 6,732
Telephone Long Distance 7,265 6,000 7,343 29,344 24,000 18,632
Utilities 121,074 113,500 106,882 345,823 338,000 323,249
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 20,433 50,000 50,000 82,481
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,205> <1,833> <2,694> <2,746> <7,332> <4,195>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 276,378 262,871 246,258 934,895 998,424 844,790
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 406,789 409,088 363,236 1,463,670 1,583,292 1,336,060

<



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,613 (799,982) 693,631 603,704
Benchmark 700,000 534,919
Excess 1,493,613 (799,982) (6,369) 68,785

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual

Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,087,324 4,486,451 9,573,775 9,374,417

Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384

Revenue Excess 487,324 486,451 973,775 1,117,033

Incentive Fee ** - 229,259
Total SMG Management Fee 300,000 719,659

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IIL.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 31 90 121 121 -
ATTENDANCE 119,526 551,186 670,712 680,500 (9,788)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 272,574 1,013,815 1,286,389 1,284,118 2,271
ANCILLARY INCOME 330,871 1,202,814 1,533,685 1,456,159 77,526
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 603,445 2,216,629 2,820,074 2,740,277 79,797
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 741,519 1,525,731 2,267,250 2,240,000 27,250
TOTAL INCOME 1,344,964 3,742,360 5,087,324 4,980,277 107,047
INDIRECT EXPENSES

EXECUTIVE 48,538 97,787 146,325 118,845 (27,480)
FINANCE 60,431 139,206 199,637 197,258 (2,379)
MARKETING 109,856 203,378 313,234 315,994 2,760
OPERATIONS 488,762 864,284 1,353,046 1,337,761 (15,285)
BOX OFFICE 44,089 64,111 108,200 106,590 (1,610)
LUXURY SEATING 25,174 86,738 111,912 115,775 3,863
SKYWALK ADMIN 11,604 29,561 41,165 39,856 (1,309)
OVERHEAD 339,551 980,641 1,320,192 1,342,153 21,961
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 1,128,005 2,465,706 3,593,711 3,574,232 (19,479)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 216,959 1,276,654 1,493,613 1,406,045 87,568
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 133,686 133,686 103,994 (29,692)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 216,959 1,142,968 1,359,927 1,302,051 57,876
Comments: R .

The Arena celebrated its 10th anniversary during the month of October
highlighted by a Public Open House and the Celebration on Ice event. General (/

Overall the facility fell below expectations for the month, however, much
of that shortfall is due to timing in the marketing department as it relates
to the anniversary, and not a trend of future activity.

e

{Hirector of Finance



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending October 31, 2006
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH October October October

Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 19 T 20 9
Attendance 70,014 97,800 49,872
Direct Event Income $42,024 $65,456 $45,910
Ancillary Income 172,482 175,774 150,313
Other Income 197,749 186,667 175,121
Indirect Expenses (342,334) (297,242) (267,203)
Net Income $69,920 $130,655 $104,141
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 31 30 25
Attendance 119,526 160,500 121,685
Direct Event Income $272,574 $288,237 $181,459
Ancillary Income 330,871 368,536 347,072
Other Income 741,519 746,668 701,027
Indirect Expenses (1,128,006) (1,188,968) (1,110,402)
Net Income $216,958 $214,473 $119,156

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell below budget for the month. The Def Leppard/Journey concert did not sell as well

as anticipated which contributed most of the shortfall in event income.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in well ahead of budget for the month. While the tickets sold for the above show
fell below normal concert expectations, the concessions spending was well above. In addition, the Detroit
Pistons game, and 10th Anniversary events performed better than expected.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses were up over expectations, however, due mainly to timing in the marketing department
as it related to Anniversary events. Overall, spending related to the anniversary was lower than expected, thus
a favorable variance in this area should be expected by fiscal year end.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

----------------- CURRENT - -~ === === === mmmmmae mmmmmmmmmmmmmm e o oY PDm o m v o mmmmm oo s
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 198,821 207,000 82,963 430,760 441,000 287,500
SERVICES INCOME <156,797> <141,544> <37,054> <158,186> <152,763> <106,040>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 42,024 65,456 45,910 : 272,574 288,237 181,459
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 156,056 160,434 126,798 284,969 302,936 287,380
NOVELTY 11,806 11,220 20,165 42,402 60,310 55,593
OTHER ANCILLARY 4,620 4,120 3,350 3,500 5,290 4,099
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 172,482 175,774 150,313 330,871 368,536 347,072
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 214,506 241,230 196,222 603,445 656,773 528,531
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 197,749 186,667 175,121 741,519 746,668 701,027
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 412,254 427,897 371,344 1,344,964 1,403,441 1,229,558
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 13,642 9,778 11,056 48,538 39,112 40,639
FINANCE 13,883 16,314 15,394 60,431 65,256 66,022
MARKETING 55,737 26,209 18,969 109,856 104,836 85,415
LUXURY SEATING 9,555 9,648 7,445 25,174 38,592 28,073
OPERATIONS 137,349 111,228 100,852 488,762 444,912 451,060
BOX OFFICE 9,650 8,897 7,647 44,089 35,588 34,655
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 3,090 3,322 2,880 11,604 13,288 11,171
OVERHEAD 99,428 111,846 102,959 339,551 447,384 393,368
INDIRECT EXPENSES 342,334 297,242 267,203 1,128,006 1,188,968 1,110,402
NET OPERATING INCOME 69,920 130,655 104,141 216,958 214,473 119,156
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 69,920 130,655 104,141 216,958 214,473 119,156




Advertising Billed
Sponsorship Income

Labor Billed

Changeover Setup Billed
Stagehands Billed

Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
Utilities Billed

City Police Fire Billed

EMT Medical Billed
Production Materials Billed
Cleaning Billed

Insurance Billed

Group Sales Commissions Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense

Labor Wages

Contracted Changeover Setup Expense

Stagehand Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense
Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense

EMT Medical Expense

Contracted Cleaning Expense
Group Sales Commissions
Allocated Telephone Expense

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

---------------- CURRENT----------------- --------------YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
36,843 11,000 15,000 67,288 11,000 64,626
99,093 0 0 99,093 0 0
1,800 540 2,090 4,700 2,700 5,378
9,834 5,800 11,187 18,598 22,500 31,320
42,435 33,700 39,610 97,615 119,200 125,306
9,451 7,500 15,789 31,200 35,500 47,923
7,371 6,550 9,197 21,741 25,550 29,187
387 400 1,462 1,511 2,000 3,204
12,837 16,900 5,649 19,010 54,400 19,720
0 0 1,400 0 0 3,200
700 336 1,288 1,400 1,680 2,800
550 850 1,138 2,975 4,250 4,663
0 0 0 0 0 3,778
11,532 6,100 10,264 28,846 26,500 23,306
0 0 1,123 0 0 1,123
1,681 0 874 2,500 0 3,039
4,230 4,800 4,515 7,705 8,300 7,665
27,672 7,300 27,013 64,937 51,500 112,885
266,415 101,776 147,599 469,116 365,080 489,121
52,842 11,000 17,774 84,349 11,000 70,383
1,530 1,377 1,777 3,995 3,213 4,571
26,580 30,463 21,642 42,122 53,645 45,133
61,309 55,227 35,932 114,526 139,954 122,993
41,231 34,440 25,986 64,874 63,140 79,333
36,664 37,500 20,422 52,207 60,400 56,050
329 0 1,243 1,468 0 2,723
12,082 17,000 6,761 18,144 54,500 18,981
1,046 1,586 1,288 1,883 2,930 2,800
525 4,049 2,200 2,894 7,855 6,353
33,783 42,236 21,357 49,777 69,881 54,306
1,357 0 524 2,235 0 1,084
1,269 1,142 1,235 2,312 2,825 1,970
152,665 7,300 26,512 186,518 48,500 128,481
423,212 243,320 184,653 627,303 517,843 595,161

<156,797> <141,544> <37,054> <158,186> <152, 763> <106, 040>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending October 31, 2006

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days

Actual Budget

9 10
2 2
3 5
6 6
11 7
31 30

29.03% 33.33%

6.45% 6.67%

9.68% 16.67%

19.35% 20.00%

35.48% 23.33%

Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget
32,130 31,000 149,875 108,635
15,419 12,500 82,821 62,522
30,061 39,000 223,379 313,354
18,543 30,000 47,827 59,730
23,373 48,000 99,537 112,532
119,526 160,500 603,439 656,773
26.88% 19.31% 24.84% 16.54%
12.90% 7.79% 13.72% 9.52%
25.15% 24.30% 37.02% 47.71%
15.51% 18.69% 7.93% 9.09%
19.55% 29.91% 16.49% 17.13%



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 7,043,539
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,119,699
PREPAID EXPENSES 62,220
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,225,458

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 8,225,458

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,629,666
ACCRUED EXPENSES 287,960
DEFERRED INCOME 1,923,221
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 3,610,109
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,450,956
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <700, 000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 196,220
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,061,324
NET INCOME (LOSS) 216,958
TOTAL EQUITY 774,503

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 8,225,458




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending October 31, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women

Total Accounts Receivable

151,967
541,167
5,081
54,357
125,654

188,687

23,134

29,652

1,119,699



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/06

————————————————— CURRENT-------wmmammecmces cccmccmcemmmmmm e e YD~ om o m o m oo m oo

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 54,265 59,541 53,179 230,382 238,164 238,841
Part-Time 7,626 5,833 6,366 17,654 23,332 19,575
Wages-Trade 90,984 69,232 65,497 242,311 276,928 253,450
Sales Commissions Group Sales 0 0 180 4,316 0 1,542
Auto Allowance 594 985 577 2,375 3,940 2,308
Auto Expense 300 0 300 1,200 0 1,200
Taxes & Benefits 37,437 38,187 35,378 128,819 152,748 143,381
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <79,266> <59,837> <56,113> <186, 962> <239,348> <186,088>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 111,940 113,941 105,363 440,095 455,764 474,211
Contracted Security 18,227 19,760 19,371 79,904 79,040 78,778
Contracted Cleaning 2,418 3,250 2,174 10,212 13,000 15,214
Other Contracted Services 3,185 300 4,905 13,601 1,200 7,119
Travel & Entertainment 1,997 858 1,011 5,863 3,432 3,455
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 2,500 509
Meetings & Conventions 1,159 350 1,358 1,558 1,400 2,122
Dues & Subscriptions 423 208 762 1,675 832 1,861
Employee Training 0 750 0 1,808 3,000 337
Computer Expense 5,503 5,417 5,987 19,765 21,668 25,510
Professional Fees 2,778 2,583 2,155 10,060 10,332 8,431
Marketing & Advertising 44,554 15,000 3,956 57,791 60,000 17,160
Box Office Expenses <985> [} 473 <1,411> 0 <B863>
Trash Removal 2,111 1,500 1,907 5,275 6,000 4,738
Equipment Rental 1,207 500 1,119 5,098 2,000 5,766
Landscaping 499 483 150 2,123 1,932 1,284
Exterminating 248 300 248 945 1,200 1,551
Cleaning 0 150 0 2,650 600 2,650
Rental Office Equipment 0 750 0 [ 3,000 0
Repairs & Maintenance 18,416 9,333 12,208 66,804 37,332 51,733
Supplies 36,388 15,758 14,901 86,345 63,032 67,197
Bank Service Charges 415 750 922 1,328 3,000 2,299
Insurance 18,693 15,179 12,206 42,782 60,716 44,821
Printing & Stationary 771 917 ] 1,772 3,668 0
Office Supplies 4,610 1,000 1,286 5,562 4,000 5,919
Postage 57 1,000 438 3,764 4,000 2,547
Parking Expense 2,538 2,000 2,076 9,938 8,000 8,868
Telephone Long Distance 3,029 7,000 4,762 19,083 28,000 29,224
Utilities 53,661 68,400 50,821 196,220 273,600 178,850
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 20,433 50,000 50,000 80,986
Common Area Expense <2,740> <2,945> <2,554> <10,290> <11,780> <9,906>

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,269> <375> <1,235> <2,312> <1,500> <1,970>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 230,394 183,301 161,840 687,911 733,204 636,192
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 342,334 297,242 267,203 1,128,006 1,188,968 1,110,402




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,493,613 (799,982) 693,631 603,704
Benchmark 700,000 534,919
Excess 1,493,613 (799,982) (6,369) 68,785

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual

Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,087,324 4,486,451 9,573,775 9,374,417

Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384

Revenue Excess 487,324 486,451 973,775 1,117,033

Incentive Fee ** - 229,259
Total SMG Management Fee 300,000 719,659

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



: Item IILD.ii.

' 9:00 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
11121106 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2006
Oct 31, 06
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

4040 - Cash - Operations - SMG
1050 - Operations - Cash

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating
1200 - Accotmts Récéivable
1300 - Prepaid Expenses

1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation
Original Cost

Total Buildings & Structures

Equip
Depreciation
Original Cost

Total Equip
Vehicles
Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales
2220 - Advance deposits
2500 - Deferred facility income

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

- 4,299,504.10
357,474.47

4,656,978.57

-19,231,731.44
2,021,241.17 :
144,082.29 |
-1,450,000.07 .

19,947,054.83

24,604,033.40

-41,778.69
322,431.00

280,652.31

-437,774.44
778,271.02

340,496.58
43,914.30

665,063.19

25,269,096.59

715,501.51
486,224.17

1,201,725.68

717,173.61
1,872,750.73
299,103.00
744,284.74

3,633,312.08

4,835,037.76

4,835,037.76

37,035,584.45
-15,526,165.80
-1,075,359.82

20,434,058.83

25,269,096.59




3:44PM
11/13/06

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Reconciliation Detail

1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 10/31/2006

Type Date Num

Name

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 44 items

Bill Pmt -Check 9/1/2006 6463
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6466
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6465
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6470
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6467
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6468
Bill Pmt -Check 9/28/2006 6469
Check 9/29/2006 10142
Check 10/13/2006 10143
Check 10/13/2006 10143
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6499
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6498
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6497
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6496
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6495
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6494
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6493
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6492
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6500
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6501
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6502
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6503
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6504
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6505
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6506
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6507
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6508
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6510
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6511
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6512
Check 10/27/2006 10147
Check 10/27/2006 10148
Check 10/27/2006 10146
Check 10/27/2006 10145
Check 10/27/2006 10144
Check 10/27/2006 10148
Check 10/27/2006 10147
Check 10/27/2006 10144
Check 10/27/2006 10146
Check 10/27/2006 10145
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6513
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6522
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6521
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6517

Total Checks and Payments
Deposits and Credits - 165 items

Payment 9/14/2006 1803
Deposit 9/29/2006
Deposit 9/29/2006
Deposit 9/29/2006
Deposit 9/29/2006
Deposit 9/29/2006
Deposit 9/29/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 9/30/2006
Deposit 10/1/2006
Deposit 10/1/2006

The Mail Order Sho...

DTE Energy
Consumers Energy
Priority Health
Grand Rapids City ...

ICMA Retirement C...
ICMA Retirement C...

Susan M. Waddell
Susan M. Waddell
Susan M. Waddell
Grand Rapids City ...

Gordon Food Servic...

Feyen-Zylstra Inc
Falcon Printing, Inc.
Eastern Floral
Dickinson Wright P...
Consumers Energy
Carison Design
Hobart Sales & Ser...

ICMA Retirement C...
ICMA Retirement C...

IFMA
Integra

Kent Count Dept of ...
Michigan Municipal ...
Pioneer Distributing...

Rapid Hot Coffee S...
Sysco Grand Rapids
Tele-Rad, inc.
Venue 1, Inc.

Rich MacKeigan
Rich MacKeigan
Susan M. Waddell
Rich MacKeigan
Rich MacKeigan
Rich MacKeigan
Rich MacKeigan
Rich MacKeigan
Susan M. Waddell
Rich MacKeigan
Consumers Energy

Seaman's Air Condi...

Priority Health
Hobart Sales & Ser...

Grand Action Com...

Cir

PR PP S 3 3P B 5 5 5 3§ 5 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 3 5 5 B 5 P B I B I P P P I P I I

HKEHKXHK XXX XXX XX XXX

Amount Balance
536,840.34
-62.91 -62.91
-352.19 -415.10
-54,810.38 -55,225.48
-370.42 -55,595.90
-3,576.93 -59,172.83
-271.40 -59,444.23
-50.00 -59,494.23
-1,490.70 -60,984.93
-826.11 -61,811.04
-1,490.70 -63,301.74
-3,706.23 -67,007.97
-3,145.97 -70,153.94
-3,702.63 -73,856.57
-465.00 -74,321.57
-82.95 -74,404.52
-2,779.10 -77,183.62
-68,091.50 -145,275.12
-300.00 -145,575.12
-7,795.37 -153,370.49
-542.80 -153,913.29
-100.00 -154,013.29
-368.00 -154,381.29
-4,470.00 -158,851.29
-19,918.87 -178,770.16
-19,887.00 -198,657.16
-5,397.00 -204,054.16
-20.50 -204,074.66
-674.03 -204,748.69
-2,423.97 -207,172.66
-75,473.94 -282,646.60
-1,849.59 -284,496.19
-1,595.67 -286,091.86
-1,490.70 -287,582.56
-868.01 -288,450.57
-868.01 -289,318.58
-553.45 -289,872.03
-349.99 -290,222.02
-186.22 -290,408.24
-826.11 -291,234.35
-186.22 -291,420.57
-33,788.37 -325,208.94
-356.33 -325,565.27
-370.42 -325,935.69
-1,552.69 -327,488.38
-327,488.38 -327,488.38
90,124.05 90,124.05
273.00 90,397.05
33.00 90,430.05
364.00 90,794.05
95.00 90,889.05
108.50 90,997.55
151.00 91,148.55
110.50 91,259.05
188.50 91,447.55
84.50 91,532.05
84.50 91,616.55
156.00 91,772.55
624.00 92,396.55
247.00 92,643.55
292.50 92,936.05
84.50 93,020.55



3:44 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

1113106 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 10/31/2006

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
Deposit 10/1/2006 X 91.00 93,111.55
Deposit 10/2/2006 X 26.00 93,137.55
Deposit 10/2/2006 X 288.00 93,425.55
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 54.00 93,479.55
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 534.50 94,014.05
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 234.00 94,248.05
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 476.00 94,724.05
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 5.00 94,729.05
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 227.00 94,956.05
Deposit 10/3/2006 X 614.00 95,570.05
Deposit 10/4/2006 X 167.00 95,737.05
Deposit 10/4/2006 X 452.00 96,189.05
Deposit 10/4/2006 X 822.00 97,011.05
Deposit 10/4/2006 X 433.00 97,444.05
Deposit 10/4/2006 X 128.00 97,572.05
Deposit 10/5/2006 X 251.00 97,823.05
Deposit 10/5/2006 X 74.00 97,897.05
Deposit 10/5/2006 X 5.00 97,902.05
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 136.00 98,038.05
Deposit 10/5/2006 X 332.50 98,370.55
Deposit 10/5/2006 X 754.00 99,124.55
Deposit 10/5/2006 X 287.00 99,411.55
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 53.00 99,464.55
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 24450 99,709.05
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 586.50 100,295.55
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 317.50 100,613.05
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 110.50 100,723.55
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 11,522.00 112,245.55
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 58.00 112,303.55
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 440.50 112,744.05
Deposit 10/6/2006 X 55.00 112,799.05
Deposit 10/7/2006 X 266.50 113,065.55
Deposit 10/7/2006 X 117.00 113,182.55
Deposit 10/7/2006 X 500.50 113,683.05
Deposit 10/7/2006 X 247.00 113,930.05
Deposit 10/7/2006 X 286.00 114,216.05
Deposit 10/8/2006 X 45.50 114,261.55
Deposit 10/8/2006 X 97.50 114,359.05
Deposit 10/8/2006 X 39.00 114,398.05
Deposit 10/9/2006 X 52.00 114,450.05
Deposit 10/9/2006 X 627.00 115,077.05
Deposit 10/9/2006 X 80.00 115,157.05
Deposit 10/9/2006 X 911.50 116,068.55
Deposit 10/9/2006 X 455.00 116,523.55
Deposit 10/9/2006 X 250.00 116,773.55
Deposit 10/10/2006 X 687.00 117,460.55
Deposit 10/10/2006 X 1,574.00 119,034.55
Deposit 10/10/2006 X 364.00 119,398.55
Deposit 10/10/2006 X 39.00 119,437.55
Deposit 10/10/2006 X 534.50 119,972.05
Deposit 10/11/2006 X 586.50 120,558.55
Deposit 10/11/2006 X 846.00 121,404.55
Deposit 10/11/2006 X 6.50 121,411.05
Deposit 10/11/2006 X 365.00 121,776.05
Deposit 10/11/2006 X 45.50 121,821.55
Deposit 10/11/2006 X 1,340.00 123,161.55
Deposit 10/12/2006 X 56.00 123,217.55
Deposit 10/12/2006 X 251.50 123,469.05
Deposit 10/12/2006 X 648.00 124,117.05
Deposit 10/12/2006 X 501.00 124,618.05
Deposit 10/12/2006 X 469.50 125,087.55
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 169.00 125,256.55
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 170.00 125,426.55
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 130.00 125,556.55
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 341.00 125,897.55
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 378.00 126,275.55
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 3,459.31 129,734.86



3:44 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11113106 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 10/31/2006

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
Deposit 10/13/2006 X 334.50 130,069.36
Deposit 10/14/2006 X 799.50 130,868.86
Deposit 10/14/2006 X 349.50 131,218.36
Deposit 10/14/2006 X 344.50 131,562.86
Deposit 10/14/2006 X 799.50 132,362.36
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 25.00 132,387.36
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 393.00 132,780.36
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 162.50 132,942.86
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 3.00 132,945.86
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 303.00 133,248.86
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 236.50 133,485.36
Deposit 10/16/2006 X 69.00 133,554.36
Deposit 10/17/2006 X 150.00 133,704.36
Deposit 10/17/2006 X 624.00 134,328.36
Deposit 10/17/2006 X 346.00 134,674.36
Deposit 10/17/2006 X 679.00 135,353.36
Deposit 10/17/2006 X 575.00 135,928.36
Deposit 10/18/2006 X 262.50 136,190.86
Deposit 10/18/2006 X 272.00 136,462.86
Deposit 10/18/2006 X 91.00 136,553.86
Deposit 10/18/2006 X 328.50 136,882.36
Deposit 10/18/2006 X 27.00 136,909.36
Deposit 10/18/2006 X 13.00 136,922.36
Deposit 10/19/2006 X 98.00 137,020.36
Deposit 10/19/2006 X 873.00 137,893.36
Deposit 10/19/2006 X 1,334.00 139,227.36
Deposit 10/19/2006 X 331.00 139,558.36
Deposit 10/19/2006 X 622.00 140,180.36
Deposit 10/19/2006 X 398.00 140,578.36
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 461.50 141,039.86
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 1,454.00 142,493.86
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 588.50 143,082.36
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 192.50 143,274.86
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 507.00 143,781.86
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 82.50 143,864.36
Deposit 10/20/2006 X 623.00 144,487.36
Deposit 10/21/2006 X 422.50 144,909.86
Deposit 10/21/2006 X 195.00 145,104.86
Deposit 10/21/2006 X 175.50 145,280.36
Deposit 10/21/2006 X 585.00 145,865.36
Deposit 10/21/2006 X 158.50 146,023.86
Deposit 10/22/2006 X 45.50 146,069.36
Deposit 10/22/2006 X 97.50 146,166.86
Deposit 10/22/2006 X 84.50 146,251.36
Deposit 10/22/2006 X 182.00 146,433.36
Deposit 10/23/2006 X 154.00 146,587.36
Deposit 10/23/2006 X 25.00 146,612.36
Deposit 10/23/2006 X 28.50 146,640.86
Deposit 10/23/2006 X 34.00 146,674.86
Deposit 10/23/2006 X 77.00 146,751.86
Deposit 10/24/2006 X 44.00 146,795.86
Deposit 10/24/2006 X 280.00 147,075.86
Deposit 10/24/2006 X 132.50 147,208.36
Deposit 10/24/2006 X 290.50 147,498.86
Deposit 10/24/2006 X 6,390.00 153,888.86
Deposit 10/24/2006 X 149.50 154,038.36
Deposit 10/25/2006 X 183.00 154,221.36
Deposit 10/25/2006 X 98.00 154,319.36
Deposit 10/25/2006 X 263.50 154,582.86
Deposit 10/25/2006 X 162.50 154,745.36
Deposit 10/26/2006 X 158.00 154,903.36
Deposit 10/26/2006 X 333.00 155,236.36
Deposit 10/26/2006 X 770.00 156,006.36
Deposit 10/26/2006 X 62.00 156,068.36
Deposit 10/26/2006 X 845.50 156,913.86
Deposit 10/27/2006 X 392.00 157,305.86
Deposit 10/27/2006 X 71.50 157,377.36



3:44 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11113106 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 10/31/2006

Type Date Num Name Clr Amount Balance
Deposit 10/27/2006 X 120.00 157,497.36
Deposit 10/27/2006 X 572.50 158,069.86
Deposit 10/27/2006 X 1,251.00 159,320.86
Deposit 10/27/2006 X 439.00 159,759.86
Deposit 10/28/2006 X 149.50 159,909.36
Deposit 10/28/2006 X 39.00 159,948.36
Deposit 10/28/2006 X 162.50 160,110.86
Deposit 10/28/2006 X 226.00 160,336.86
Deposit 10/28/2006 X 544.50 160,881.36
Deposit 10/28/2006 X 91.00 160,972.36
Deposit 10/29/2006 X 247.00 161,219.36
Deposit 10/29/2006 X 455.00 161,674.36
Deposit 10/29/2006 X 169.00 161,843.36
Deposit 10/30/2006 X 372.00 162,215.36
Deposit 10/30/2006 X 117.50 162,332.86

Total Deposits and Credits 162,332.86 162,332.86
Total Cleared Transactions -165,155.52 -165,155.52
Cleared Balance -165,155.52 371,684.82
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 8 items
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6112 Priority Health -398.73 -398.73
Bill Pmt -Check 10/16/2006 6509 SMG Food & Bever... -1,616.26 -2,014.99
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6514 DTE Energy -777.93 -2,792.92
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6519 ICMA Retirement C... -50.00 -2,842.92
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6516 Grand Rapids City ... -195.04 -3,037.96
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6515 Gordon Food Servic... -8,219.77 -11,257.73
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6518 ICMA Retirement C... -260.96 -11,518.69
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2006 6520 Pioneer Distributing... -3,177.16 -14,695.85
Total Checks and Payments -14,695.85 -14,695.85
Deposits and Credits - 5 items
Sales Receipt 9/14/2006 Grand Action Com... 0.00 0.00
Deposit 10/31/2006 30.00 30.00
Deposit 10/31/2006 242.00 272.00
Deposit 10/31/2006 39.00 311.00
Deposit 10/31/2006 174.50 485.50
Total Deposits and Credits 485.50 485.50
Total Uncleared Transactions -14,210.35 -14,210.35
Register Balance as of 10/31/2006 -179,365.87 357,474.47
New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 5 items
Bill Pmt -Check 11/7/2006 6523 SMG - Philadelphia -229,259.00 -229,259.00
Check 11/10/2006 10149 Rich MacKeigan -326.81 -229,585.81
Check 11/10/2006 10150 Susan M. Waddell -847.23 -230,433.04
Check 11/10/2006 10149 Rich MacKeigan -868.01 -231,301.05
Check 11/10/2006 10150 Susan M. Waddell -1,480.14 -232,781.19

Total Checks and Payments -232,781.19 -232,781.19



3:44 PM
11/13/06

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Reconciliation Detail

1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 10/31/2006

Type Date Num
Deposits and Credits - 45 items
Deposit 11/1/2006
Deposit 11/1/2006
Deposit 11/1/2006
Deposit 11/1/2006
Deposit 11/1/2006
Deposit 11/1/2006
Deposit 11/2/2006
Deposit 11/2/2006
Deposit 11/2/2006
Deposit 11/2/2006
Deposit 11/2/2006
Deposit 11/3/2006
Deposit 11/3/2006
Deposit 11/3/2006
Deposit 11/3/2006
Deposit 11/3/2006
Deposit 11/3/2006
Deposit 11/4/2006
Deposit 11/4/2006
Deposit 11/4/2006
Deposit 11/4/2006
Deposit 11/4/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/5/2006
Deposit 11/6/2006
Deposit 11/6/2006
Deposit 11/6/2006
Deposit 11/6/2006
Deposit 11/6/2006
Deposit 11/7/12006
Deposit 11/7/2006
Deposit 11/7/2006
Deposit 11/7/2006
Deposit 11/7/2006
Deposit 11/7/2006
Deposit 11/7/2006
Deposit 11/8/2006
Deposit 11/8/2006
Deposit 11/8/2006
Deposit 11/8/2006

Total Deposits and Credits

Total New Transactions

Ending Balance

Name

Cir

Amount

153.00
49.00
303.00
6.00
240.00
364.00
310.00
815.00
179.00
84.00
45.00
149.25
503.00
409.50
857.00
219.00
570.50
572.00
767.00
201.50
325.00
208.00
52.00
52.00
240.50
344.50
110.50
552.50
266.50
592.00
362.50
142.50
645.50
79.00
105.00
30.00
234.00
145.00
194.00
13,461.00
133.00
167.50
286.00
276.00
162.00

25,963.25
-206,817.94

-386,183.81

Balance

153.00
202.00
505.00
511.00
751.00
1,115.00
1,425.00
2,240.00
2,419.00
2,503.00
2,548.00
2,697.25
3,200.25
3,609.75
4,466.75
4,685.75
5,256.25
5,828.25
6,595.25
6,796.75
7.121.75
7,329.75
7,381.75
7.433.75
7,674.25
8,018.75
8,129.25
8,681.75
8,948.25
9,540.25
9,902.75
10,045.25
10,690.75
10,769.75
10,874.75
10,904.75
11,138.75
11,283.75
11,477.75
24,938.75
25,071.75
25,239.25
25,525.25
25,801.25
25,963.25

25,963.25
-206,817.94

150,656.53




1:49 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11/13/06 Reconciliation Detail
1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 09/30/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 2 items
Deposit 9/1/2006 Iinterest
Transfer 9/13/2006 Funds Transfer

Total Deposits and Credits

X X

Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Register Balance as of 09/30/2006

Ending Balance

Amount

75,841.32
850,000.00

925,841.32
925,841.32
925,841.32
925,841.32

925,841.32

Balance
18,305,890.12

75,841.32
925,841.32

925,841.32
925,841.32
19,231,731.44
19,231,731.44

19,231,731.44




c/o
A =

TT1°86€°€98'8T JONVIVE ATIVA dOVIIAVY

ZE TP8'SZ6 ZE 1%8°526 TYIOL
\< 00°000‘0S8 0 007000 ‘0S8 1 0T
\,Nm.ﬂﬁw.? 0 ZE TI¥8'SL T £

INOOWY LIN INOOWY ON LINOOWY ON  HdAL
........... SNOIIONQAA---- -----~----SNOILIAQ¥------

dq00 HdAL X9 d¥Odd

20TuUy 21:8%:S0 90/9T/0T PP TEL'TECT 6T 00°000°0S8 - 0T 90/%1/60
20T3Uy 8€:82 €T 90/2Z/60 PP 1€L'TIBE’'ST TE' I8 'SL LNIdd¥ € 90/10/60
Z1°068°'s0€’sT
Xd QaLsod qaLs0d FWIL FONVIVE SNOILDAQIEAa SNOILIQQY goanos ddAL gL¥a
E€T6ET TZT TOLO :YIIWAN DNILVIHJO-YYD * aNaJgd

90/0€/60 HOQOVHL 90/T0/60

dIADAIAT ANQS € SEIYHES
TI:€T 90/LT/0T :NO¥
6 $govd INIY 40 ALNOOD LAYT



9:12 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11/21/06 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through October 2006
Jul - Oct 06
Income
4040 - Private Support -90,872.66
4500 - Interest on Investments 228,770.76
4540 - Land Lease 34,566.00
4545 - Parking Revenues _169_21_0_73
Total Income 342,074.85
Expense
6000 - Professional Services 28,540.84
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00
6068 - Parking Management 64,959.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 24,966.76
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 514,431.16
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 12,128.36
6300 - Utilities Expense 508,639.40
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00
8000 - Personal Services 33,010.15
Total Expense 1,417,434.67

Net Income -1,075,359.82



9:13 AM H - -
11121106 Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss by Fund
July through October 2006

Admin & Capital Replacement

(Operations) TOTAL
Income
4040 - Private Support -90,872.66 -90,872.66
4500 - Interest on Investments 228,770.76 228,770.76
4540 - Land Lease 34,566.00 34,566.00
4545 - Parking Revenues 169,610.75 169,610.75
Total Income 342,074.85 342,074.85
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 14,002.32 14,002.32
6040 - Legal Services 14,538.52 14,538.52
Total 6000 - Professional Services 28,540.84 28,540.84
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00 1,500.00
6068 - Parking Management 64,959.00 64,959.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00 9.00
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 19,196.86 19,196.86
6110 - Meeting Expense 49.48 49.48
6120 - Supplies 1,241.42 1,241.42
6140 - Printing and Binding 4.470.00 4,470.00
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 24,966.76 24,966.76
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 514,431.16 514,431.16
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 12,128.36 12,128.36
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 330,785.54 330,785.54
6310 - Natural Gas 2,047.24 2,047.24
6320 - Steam 144,970.57 144,970.57
6330 - Telephone 3,688.39 3,588.39
6340 - Water & Sewer 27,247.66 27,247.66
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 508,639.40 508,639.40
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00 229,259.00
8000 - Personal Services
8001 : Employee Wages 25,764.87 25,764.87
8030 - Employee Benefits 7,245.28 7,245.28
Total 8000 - Personal Services 33,010.15 33,010.15
Total Expense 141743467 141743467

Net Income -1,075,359.82 -1,075,359.82




9:15 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11121108 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July through October 2006

Accrual Basis

Jul - Oct 06 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
income
4040 - Private Support -90,872.66
4500 - Interest on Investments 228,770.76 261,668.00 -32,897.24 87.4%
4540 - Land Lease 34,566.00 51,632.00 -16,966.00 67.1%
4545 - Parking Revenues 169,610.75 244,856.00 -75,245.25 69.3%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
Total Income 342,074.85 563,056.00 -220,981.15 60.8%
Expense
8000 - Professional Services
8001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 14,002.32 8,668.00 5,334.32 161.5%
6040 - Legal Services 14,538.52 10,000.00 4,538.52 145.4%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 28,540.84 18,668.00 9,872.84 162.9%
8060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00 20,000.00 -18,500.00 7.5%
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 0.00 26,668.00 -26,668.00 0.0%
6068 - Parking Management 64,959.00 112,412.00 -47,453.00 57.8%
8100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 19,196.86 6,668.00 12,528.86 287.9%
6110 - Meeting Expense 49.48 1,332.00 -1,282.52 3.7%
6120 - Supplies 1,241.42 3,332.00 -2,090.58 37.3%
6140 - Printing and Binding 4,470.00
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 24,966.76 11,332.00 13,634.76 220.3%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 514,431.16 362,000.00 152,431.16 142.1%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 12,128.36
6300 - Utilities Expense
8301 - Electricity 330,785.54 398,000.00 -67,214.46 83.1%
6310 - Natural Gas 2,047.24 6,000.00 -3,952.76 34.1%
6320 - Steam 144,970.57 369,832.00 -224,861.43 39.2%
6330 - Telephone 3,688.39
6340 - Water & Sewer 27,247.66 4,128.00 23,119.66 660.1 %
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 508,639.40 777,960.00 -269,320.60 65.4%
6500 - DID Assessment 0.00 16,552.00 -16,552.00 0.0%
8600 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 25,764.87 19,600.00 6,164.87 131.5%
8030 - Employee Benefits 7,245.28 7,024.00 221.28 103.2%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 33,010.15 26,624.00 6,386.15 124.0%
Total Expense 1,417,434.67 1,372,216.00 45,218.67 103.3%
Net Income +1,075,359.82 -809,160.00 +266,199.82 132.9%

-11 -



9:17 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
11121/08 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July through October 2006

Accrual Basis

Jul - Oct 06 Jul - Oct 05 $ Change % Change
Income
4040 - Private Support -90,872.66 0.00 -90,872.66 -100.0%
4500 - Interest on Investments 228,770.76 163,145.51 65,625.25 40.2%
4540 - Land Lease 34,566.00 46,088.00 -11,522.00 -25.0%
4545 - Parking Revenues 169,610.75 105,953.75 63,657.00 60.1%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 23,900.00 -23,800.00 -100.0%
Total Income 342,074.85 339,087.26 2,987.59 0.9%
Expense
8000 - Professional Services
8001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 14,002.32 624.82 13,377.50 2,141.0%
8040 - Legal Services 14,538.52 821.50 13,717.02 1,669.8%
Total 8000 - Professional Services 28,540.84 1,446.32 27,094.52 1,873.3%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.0%
6085 - Pedestrian Safety 0.00 7.910.93 -7,910.93 -100.0%
6068 - Parking Management 64,959.00 45,007.40 19,951.60 44.3%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00 0.00 9.00 100.0%
6020 - Computer Services 0.00 249.95 -249.95 -100.0%
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 19,196.86 8,630.00 10,566.86 122.4%
6110 - Meeting Expense 49.48 1,397.08 -1,347.80 -96.5%
6120 - Supplies 1,241.42 481.80 759.62 157.7%
6140 - Printing and Binding 4,470.00 0.00 4,470.00 100.0%
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 24,966.76 10,758.83 14,207.93 132.1%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 0.00 27,308.25 -27,306.25 -100.0%
6200 - Caplital Replacement Projects 514,431.16 384,640.02 129,791.14 33.7%
6210 - F&B Repalr & Maintenance 12,128.36 0.00 12,128.36 100.0%
6300 - Utilities Expense
8301 - Electricity 330,785.54 325,157.45 5,628.09 1.7%
6310 - Natural Gas 2,047.24 3,658.81 -1,611.57 -44.1%
6320 - Steam 144,970.57 24,028.10 120,942.47 503.3%
6330 - Telephone 3,588.39 0.00 3,588.39 100.0%
6340 - Water & Sewer 27,247.66 31,274.73 -4,027.07 -12.9%
Total 8300 - Utilities Expense 508,639.40 384,119.08 124,520.31 32.4%
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00 194,533.00 34,726.00 17.9%
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 25,764.87 8,492.12 17,272.75 203.4%
8030 - Employee Benefits 7,245.28 6,022.24 1,223.04 20.3%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 33,010.156 14,514.36 18,495.79 127.4%
Total Expense 1,417,434.67 1,070,236.20 347,198.47 32.4%
Net income -1,075,359.82 -731,148.94 -344,210.88 -47.1%

-12 -



BDO Seidman, LLP 99 Monroe Avenue NW, Suite 800
Accountants and Consultants Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2654
.1

D ——— Telephone: (616) 774-7000
Fax: (616) 776-3680

November 29, 2006

Board of Directors

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

300 Monroe Avenue NW

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Dear Members of the Board:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority) for the year ended June 30, 2006 and have
issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2006. Professional standards require that we

provide you with the following information related to our audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management
of the Authority and should not be used for any other purpose.

Very truly yours,

B0 _Jeeilowar f1/



Grand Rapids -
Convention/Are

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2006



Grand Rapids - Kent (
Convention/Arena Autho

Report to the Board of

Our Responsibility Under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated September 24, 2006, our responsibility, as prescribed by
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether
caused by error or fraud. An audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America does not provide absolute assurance or guarantee the accuracy of
the financial statements and is subject to the inherent risk that errors or fraud, if they exist, have
not been detected.

Such standards also require that we obtain a sufficient understanding of the Grand Rapids - Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority’s (the Authority) internal control to plan the audit.
However, such understanding is required for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and
not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of the Authority’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, the
objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions.
While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal
determination of the Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

Our Responsibility for Other Information in Documents Containing Audited
Financial Statements

Under professional standards, the auditor’s responsibility for other information in documents
containing the Authority’s audited financial statements (e.g., Management’s Discussion and
Analysis) does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the financial statements,
and the auditor is not required to perform procedures to corroborate such other information.
However, in accordance with such standards, we have read the information in the Authority’s
financial statements and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation,
was materially inconsistent with its presentation in the financial statements. Our responsibility
also includes calling to management’s attention any information that we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. No such inconsistencies or misstatements came to our attention.




Grand Rapids - Kent
Convention/Arena Auth

Report to the Board of

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no
transactions entered into by the Authority during the year that were both significant and unusual,
and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance.

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
markedly from management’s current judgments. We have made tests of management’s
estimates and deemed them to be appropriate.

Significant Audit Adjustments and Financial Statement Disclosures

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a
proposed correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected
except through our auditing procedures. The definition includes adjustments that were not
recorded by the Authority because they are not material to the current financial statements but
might be potentially material to future financial statements.

During our audit, no material audit adjustments were noted. However, we proposed one
adjustment (see below) that was not made by management because it was not considered
material.

Item # Account Name and Adjustment Description Debit Credit
1 Land Lease Revenue $11,522
Beginning Net Assets $ 11,522

One extra month of land lease revenue was recognized
during the year, which should have been recognized in the
prior period.




Grand Rapids - Kent C
Convention/Arena Aut'_

Report to the Board of ;D

Disagreements With Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting
or auditing matter which could be significant to the Authority’s financial statements or the audit
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Consultations With Other Accountants

There may be circumstances where the Authority considers consulting with other accountants
about accounting and auditing matters. We are not aware of any situation where this occurred
during the period.

Major Issues Discussed With Management Prior to Our Retention

Prior to our being retained as auditor for the current fiscal year, there were no major accounting
or other issues of concern discussed with management.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We are pleased to inform you that there were no significant delays encountered during the course

of the audit. All records and information requested by BDO Seidman were freely available for
inspection. Management and other personnel provided full cooperation.

Independence

We are not aware of any relationships between BDO Seidman and the Grand Rapids - Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence.




BDO Seidman, LLP 99 Monroe Avenue NW, Suite 800
B D O Accountants and Consultants Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2654
P ——— Telephone: (616) 774-7000

Fax: (616) 776-3680

October 13, 2006

Members of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Dear Members of the Board:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2006. In planning and performing
our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal controls in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements
and not to provide assurance on the internal controls.

During our audit, we noted certain matters involving accounting procedures and business
practices that are presented for your consideration. These comments and
recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of
management, are intended to improve financial reporting practices or result in operating
efficiencies.

We would be happy to further discuss our recommendations with you and provide
whatever assistance you deem appropriate to implement these recommendations.

We appreciate the cooperation of the Authority’s staff that our personnel received during
the audit.

This memorandum is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors,
management and others within the Authority.

Very truly yours,

TIO Leeilovar, L1 P



rand Rapids -
onvention/Are

Memorandum of Recommendations
Year Ended June 30, 2006



Grand Rapids - Kent
Convention/Arena Auf

g

Memorandum of Recommen f»i!’"
E

Social Security Number Privacy Act

The State of Michigan enacted Public Act 454, Social Security Privacy Act, which was effective
March 1, 2005. This law places certain restrictions on the use of employees’ social security
numbers. With limited exceptions, the Authority is prohibited from displaying more than the last
four digits of employees’ social security numbers. The Authority does not have a policy limiting
the use of employees’ social security numbers.

Recommendation

Review the new law and implement a policy to ensure that the Authority is in
compliance with this State law. The new policy should be communicated to all
employees and monitored to ensure compliance.

Investment Policy

The Authority had funds invested in corporate bonds during the year. Public Act 20 of 1943
specifies the types of investments that are allowable for the Authority. Investments may be in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and related government agencies, commercial paper rated prime
and maturing within 270 days, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, obligations of the
state of Michigan or any of its political subdivisions rated investment grade and mutual funds
composed of the types of investment vehicles named previously.

Recommendation

Monitor the Authority’s investments to ensure that they are in compliance with all
applicable statutory requirements. In addition, all agents of the Authority who
have responsibility for investing the Authority’s funds should review the policy
and only invest in those funds allowed by the law.




Grand Rapids - Kent Count
Convention/Arena Auth

Memorandum of Recommenda

New Pronouncements

There are several new pronouncements that have been issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) that could affect future financial reports issued by the Authority. A
brief summary of these new pronouncements is listed below:

GASB Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation is to help governments
determine when net assets are restricted by enabling legislation and how to report them in the
financial statements. This will be effective for the Authority for the year ending June 30, 2007.

GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits contains guidance on reporting
benefits paid to employees who terminate employment. For financial statements prepared on the
accrual basis, a liability should be recognized for voluntary termination benefits when the offer is
accepted and the amount can be estimated. A liability should be recognized for involuntary
termination benefits when a plan of termination has been approved, communicated to the
employees and the amount can be estimated. This will be effective for the Authority for the year
ending June 30, 2007.

Recommendation

Review the new pronouncements to determine changes necessary to ensure that
the Authority is in compliance with applicable financial statement and note
disclosures.




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chomberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

2B

Item IILb.iii.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
e e e
A e e e e e D g T i oy el

Bl e e e
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORI‘TEY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILI 5

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Chairman, Steven R. Heacock
From: Robert J. White, Kent County Fiscal Service Director @ﬂﬂ
Re: Convention/Arena Authority

Analysis of Current Financial Position

Date: November 21, 2006

The attached two-page report provides a summary (cliff notes) of the financial
position of the Convention/Arena Authority. The summary includes a recitation of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (Unrestricted) for the year ended June
30, 2005 (FY 2005), comparable status at intervals for the Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2006 (FY 2006) and the current status of the Fiscal Year 2007 budget. The term “Net
Assets (Unrestricted)” excludes capital assets which are not deemed available to support
ongoing operations.

The FY 2007 budget, as adopted, provided for a draw of $1.76 million from Net
Assets (Unrestricted). This “draw” will be significantly reduced by additional revenue
increases (over original budget estimates) in the categories of Facilities-SMG, Parking
and Investment Income. In addition, the current year (FY 2007) capital budget of $3.18
million includes a one-time Fiscal Year 2006 capital carryover appropriation of
$2,089,230. The long-range capital replacement schedule, included in the Fiscal Year
2007 budget request memorandum (July 20, 2006), forecasted a Fiscal Year 2008 capital
replacement requirement of $829,600.

It would appear that the Convention/Arena Authority should be able to maintain
its “Net Assets (Unrestricted)” balance for the next several years. The long-range capital
repair/replacement forecast suggested a need to substantially increase funding in Fiscal
Years 2012 and thereafter. The long-range capital repair/replacement forecast will be
updated as part of the Fiscal Year 2008 budget cycle.

S

eVos Places
Yg'(") é:ld'zln 'A‘VrVeers‘»?lb 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590



"009'Fb.'2$ 10 pajewsa pasinal sienbe 000'980°L$ JO [elides mau
£00Z A4 snid 009'8G9’ L$ 10 JoA0ALIED [BNJOY "0EZ'680°Z$ 1B PajewINsa JOAOALED 900Z Ad (2)

‘uonjeziended 1oy

uouULAP Ja3W Jou pIp Juswade|daymeday Jolfey sway -aul asuadxg buneiadp 0}
pasow Junodoy jende) woy (0)) J9ysuel], ul pajewnsa/paebpng Ajjeuibuo saiuop (1)

9002 ‘6 J3qUIaAON

(pejorysaiun) syassy joN ul

GEZV80'6LS  SSEPY80C$ 9/1'892°0C$ $29°260'81 $ LLZ'eis'1es
GGE'Y8'0C 1122612 Lz'eisie 112'2.6'12 8Z0°LIL'S
(0ZL'092°L) (968°222) (5e¥'€08) (285'¥15'E) £8L°L0¥'OL
2 (0ET'GLL'E) (298'€8G°L) (29%'906°L) (1Z8'ev0'y) ¥.0'€89'GL
000008 £6L'vEL 2v0'688 zre'vel £19'08
OLL'GL9 g18'lel 066'€Le (soL‘c6l) 9e' /€9
9/£'918'6 £61'621°0L 6L2°€90°0L #01'89€'6 9002528
000'08 £6.v8 000°GZ 209'9/ oL8°LL
AN AR 16Z°ZLE L8Y'00€ 006'LYE oLg‘ale
625'6.2 ZsL'i6e §90'65Z 600212 z62'Tie
- 6.6'v2S 6.6'V2S 6.6'v2S Z89'€6
GLO'6LL'G 2.6'666'8 ¥61'806'8 XA A ZLr'isL's
98P’ LEY 0L LL0'L0E'0L 60.°222°0L 966'2/1'6 Zri'68E'6
991'688 ¥65'926 901 '¥88 969°169 £€25'P0L
o0ze'ers'e $  Liv'biee $ £09'c6€'6 $ 00€'12s's $ 616'v89'8 $
jebpng )pny ajewnsy Jobpng ypny
feutbu0
L00ZAd 900ZAd S00ZAd

sobuey pue sasuadxy ‘SanuaAay JO JUBWIIL}S PIJePIjOSUO)

Ajuoyiny BUAIY/UORUSAUOY
AQuno9 Juay -spidey] puels)

:S9)ON

‘1A $0 pu3 (pajoLysalun) s)assy 19N

"JA Jo "Bag (pajouysasun) s)assy 19N

ooy [ende) woy () Jojsuel |
SNOBUB|[2ISIIN/AWOIU| JUSW]SSAU|
:s9nuaAay Bunesado-uoN

(sso) awosuj Bupessdo

Kisjes uewysapad

Bupped

uohesnsiuiwpy

sjuswaoejdoy/neday Jofepy

suonesadQ Ajjioed
:sasuadx3g BugesradQ

Bupped
ONS-saniioe4
:sanuaAay Bunesadg



"awl Siy} je pauyap Afjns Jou saipAnoe Buieyiew
10} ©2UBMOJ[e UB pue aouejsisse Bui)nsuod Joj Juswalinbai Buinuiuod sajedionue uojepuswIodal }96png Z00ZAd
‘sjusWwaaibe uoissaouoo pue Juswabeuew Ao} Mau Jo uoeiobau Ul JSISSe 0} paule}al SjUB)NSUD papn(oul sasuadxa 900z A4(2)

"B|NWLIOS UONEOO|[E JJ8uaq UO paseq Yy WOy UORNGLIUOD Judssasse [ejoads jouysiq Juaswanoiduw umojumod(t)

625'6.29 251262 $ 690°'6S2$ 600Cic$ z6zeies

000} 016G 000V 0061 ¥61T
@ 00009 £28'0L 16v'9L - 912l
00002 0291 000'6} 008'0Z 0£8'61
W 6596V vE0' LY ¥E0' LY vE0' LY ¥GL'9Y
000°0€ 692'GE 00002 000°0€ 120'S1
00092 £0€'c8 000'c. 002Z'8E SG6'SY
190'12 1¥8'8L £66'81 996°/1 681°LL

€08'8S $ ri'ee ¢ LpG'os ¢ 60595 $ 202'sS $

:S9JON

asi/sanddng/bunssy
Bunaiepy/syue)nsuodn
aoueinsuy|
juawissassy aid
s991A19¢ [eba
3pny/Bununoddy
sjijouag

sabem

yebpng Jpny ajews3 yobpng upny
feuibuo

L00CAd 900CAd S00ZAd

|1ejaq - sasuadx3 uonesnsiuwpy
Auoyiny eudly/UOIUBAUO)
A3uno? Jud)y) - spidey pueis

way| aury



VAN ANDEL ARENA

FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE & COMMISSIONS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2006

MONTH
Concession Events

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

YEAR TO DATE
Concession Events

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

Item IILb.iv.

MONTHLY EVENTS - PER CAP COMPARISON

Ringling Brothers - 7 Shows
Griffins - 8 Games

Detroit Pistons

Def Lepard / Journey

October October October
Actual Budget Prior Year
17 18 9
315,152 339,000 291,494
(148,121) (159,330) (147,444)
(19,993) (33,000) (23,685)
147,038 146,670 120,365
69,492 94,000 51,048
(55,941) (75,673) (42,467)
(2,525) (4,563) (2,148)
11,026 13,764 6,433
158,064 160,434 126,798
(2,008)
156,056 160,434 126,798
YTD 2007 YTD 2007 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
25 28 25
530,928 591,500 591,569
(249,536) (278,005) (299,306)
(19,993) (33,000) (23,685)
261,399 280,495 268,578
135,228 138,500 122,326
(105,619) (111,496) (101,377)
(2,525) (4,563) (2,148)
27,084 22,441 18,801
288,483 302,936 287,379
(3,513)
284,970 302,936 287,379
Previous Visit Current Year Percentage Change
$2.86 $2.92 2.10%
$5.44 $5.13 -5.70%
$5.63 $5.90 4.80%
$9.15 $9.58 4.70%

Please note: Griffins per cap compares first 6 games of both last season and current season.



Item IV

Memorandum

To: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority
From: Richard MacKeigan — CAA Executive Director
Dates: November 17, 2006

Re: Sports Commission Funding

| have received a request from Roger Morgan on behalf of the Kent County Board of
Commissioners (see attached) to provide funding for a Sports Commission. The request outiines
some of the benefits that they see for CAA venues as well as the West Michigan community
overall. The request is for a commitment of $25,000 annually.

Discussions regarding a sports commission have been on and off for a few years now, but under
the leadership of Roger Morgan and Peter Secchia, the county and a few key private sector
donors are taking a leadership role in an effort to making it a reality. The impact the Sport
Commission will have could be significant; however, CAA venues would not be the principle
benefactors; rather, the non-downtown community facilities and fields, restaurants, hotels and
service sector businesses. | do anticipate some benefit to CAA facilities, but not to the degree of
other community assets. For this reason, a request for $25,000 towards an overall budget of
approximately $400,000 is a reasonable one. Funding at a higher level, would be beyond

my expected return. This would be an investment.

While the opportunities the sports commission will provide our community could have a modest
direct impact on our facilities, they could have a significant impact on the hotel/motel tax revenue
the county receives which in turn benefits the CAA venues to provide for bond retirement.

| would like to request the CAA approve a pledge of $25,000 for this current fiscal year and that
we place a marker in our budget moving forward. There are currently funds available within our
current year's budget to accommodate this request. | would recommend the funding for the Sport
Commission to be contractual in nature and for the CAA to require our funds to be allocated
towards efforts specifically designed to benefit CAA venues. While the funds would be turned
over in advance lump sum, the CAA would receive quarterly reports on the efforts of the CAA with
appropriate documentation demonstrating how the funds were spent. The money would

be contingent upon the Sports Commission becoming a reality; it would be a pledge until the
Sports Commission is formed and an agreement is signed between the two entities. Initial
conversations with the County indicate such an arrangement would be agreeable.

Should the CAA approve this request, | will work with Dick Wendt to structure a formal agreement
between CAA and the Sports Commission. As always, | am available should you have any
questions, comments or concerns.



BOARD CHAIR
Roger Morgan

Daniel Koorndyk

| &\)&g\y
BoARD Vice cHair November 7, 2006 Nﬁ

COMMITTEE CHAIRS

Finance:

Daniel Koomdyk Rich MacKeigan, Director BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Legislative: rand Rapids-Ken n nvention/Arena Authorit

Dean Agea Gra apids-Kent County Conventio y 300 Monroe Avenue N.-W.
303 Monroe NW . o

MEMBERS ) Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Jack Boslema  Girand Rapids, M1 49503 Administrative Office (616) 632-7580

Marvin Hiddema Fax (616) 632-7585

Jack Hort : he

Mo Ko Dear Rich: www.accesskent.com

Harold Mast

Paul Mayh . . . .

David Morren As you know, in July of this year I established a Subcommittee of the Kent County Board of

o o Commissioners to provide a recommendation regarding the creation of a West Michigan

Arthur Tanis

Dick Vander Molen
James Vaughn
Theodore Vonk
Harold Voorhees
Fritz Wahlfield

Sports Commission (WMSC). Since that time, the Subcommittee studied potential roles of a
sports commission and how creating a commission may impact Kent County and West
Michigan.

Recently, the Subcommittee reported its findings to the community at a stakeholder/
interested party update. One of the key findings is that for a sports commission to be
successful, it is essential that it have broad based community support from many sectors
including, but not limited to, private & corporate businesses, the public sector, and non-profit
organizations.

The Subcommittee has identified the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (CAA) Board as a significant stakeholder in this endeavor due to its governance of
the VanAndel Arena and DeVos Place. To that point, the Subcommittee is requesting an
opportunity to share its findings with the CAA Board with the understanding that the CAA

Board be requested to provide a $25,000 annual appropriation to support the operation of the
WMSC.

For your information, concurrent to the CAA request, the Sports Commission Subcommittee
is seeking other funding to support the WMSC which includes:

e Formal approval from the County Board of Commissioners for a $200,000 annual
appropriation for five years

e An annual appropriation from the Grand Rapids/Kent County CVB

e An annual contribution from the private sector of at least $100,000

If you have any questions regarding this request and to schedule the presentation, please
contact Wayman Britt, Assistant County Administrator at (616) 632-7577.

Sincerely,

Roger Morgan%;:

Kent County Board of Commissioners



Memorandum

To: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority
From: Richard MacKeigan — CAA Executive Director

Dates: November 25, 2006

Re: Project Homeless Facility Use

Mayor Heartwell and the City of Grand Rapids have requested the use of the VanAndel Arena for
an event called Project Homeless. The event is scheduled for January 25, 2007 and would run
from 10 am to 3 pm. The arena is available and | do not foresee another possible user requesting
the date. They anticipate anywhere between 500-1000 people attending.

This is a national "best practice" model which involves a one day event to provide services and
resources for persons who are homeless in our community, and also provides an opportunity for
other community citizens to volunteer to help during that day. Ideally this would be housed at one
central site, linking people to benefits and services to help lead them on the path to permanent
housing and stability. There will also be a meal served as well as a number of informational
exhibits for those who are dealing with homelessness.

Within the SMG Management contract, the CAA, City and County have the ability to use DeVos
Place and/or VanAndel Arena rent free up to $25,000/ year provided the use does not limit SMG
from renting the space (see attached).

I would like to request the CAA approve this use of the facility as it is within the parameters set
aside within the SMG management agreement.

All expenses would still be the responsibility of the event; however, | anticipate expenses to be
minimal, if any, as all services and goods are being donated. The City will look to enlist the
assistance of the Police Department to assist with security.

Should the CAA approve this request, SMG will work with the Mayor's office and Salvation Army
(who is facilitating the event) to execute a facility use contract and assure appropriate insurance
coverage is in place. As always, | am available should you have any questions, comments or
concerns; as is Mayor Heartwell.

Item V



MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
between the
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
and
SMG
Dated as of July 1, 2006

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.1. Use of the Facilities at Direction of the County, the City or the
Authority.

(a) The County, the City and the Authority shall have the right to use either
Facility or any part thereof, upon reasonable advance notice and subject to availability,
for such purposes as meetings, seminars, training classes or other uses without the
payment of any rental or use fee except that direct out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with such uses shall be paid by the County, the City or the Authority, as the
case may be.

()  The County, the City and the Authority shall not schedule use of either
Facility pursuant to subsection (a) above if such use will conflict with paying events
booked by SMG and shall in all instances be subordinate thereto in terms of priority of
use of either Facility, provided, however, that the County, the City and the Authority
shall not be subordinate with respect to any competing use which is first scheduled within
the 21 day period immediately preceding the scheduled use of the County, the City or the
Authority. If either of the Facilities are to be used at the County's, the City's or the
Authority's request or by the County, the City or the Authority pursuant to subparagraph
(a) above, a normal rent or use fee which otherwise would be chargeable for such event
shall be deemed to have been paid, and any such deemed payments which exceed the
amount of $25,000 in any Fiscal Year shall constitute Operating Revenues for the
respective Facility for the purpose of calculating SMG's incentive fee pursuant to Section
4.2 hereof.



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V]
DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Nov22 | Available
Thur, Nov 23 )
Closed — Thanksgiving Day” £<
Fri, Nov 24 Griffins vs Chicago AH | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game skate
Sat, Nov 25 Martina McBride GC | IIM Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Performance
Grand Rapids Home for Veterans AC Banquet B S5P-7P Banquet
Martina McBride AC Banquet C/D 6:30A-9:30P Backstage catering
Sun, Nov 26 Available
Mon, Nov 27 | Available
Tue, Nov 28 Available
Wed, Nov 29 | Griffins vs Hamilton AH | LYNNE | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Thur, Nov 30 | Available
Fri, Dec 1 Griffins vs Rochester AH | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
5:30 PM Doors
6:30P-9P Hockey game
9P-9:30P Post-game autographs
9:30P-10:15P Calvin vs. Hope hockey game
Griffins AC Banquet B 5:30P-6:30P Group giveaways
Five Star Lakeshore AC Banquet C 5P-6:30P Banquet
Sat, Dec 2 Griffins vs Rochester AH | TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
3:30P-4:30P High school hockey game
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Griffins AC Banquet A 5:20P-5:45P Drake Bell Meet-N-Greet
Grandville Hockey AC Banquet B/C 4:30P-7P Banquet
CDL AC Banquet D 5P-7P Banquet
Sun, Dec 3 Available
Mon, Dec 4 Available
Tue, Dec 5 The Who AH | CHRIS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
The Who AC Banquet C/D 6:30A-9:30P Backstage catering
Wed, Dec 6 Available
Thur, Dec 7 Grand Valley State University AH Arena 1:00 PM Load-in
Fri, Dec 8 Griffins vs Toronto AH ] ROD Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Sat, Dec 9 Grand Valley State University GC | TODD | Arena 8:00 AM Commencement ceremony
Sun, Dec 10 Trans Siberian Orchestra GC | CHRIS | Arena 3:.00 PM Performance
7:30 PM Performance
Trans Siberian Orchestra AC Banquet C/D 6:30A-9:30P Backstage catering
Citadel (WLAV) AC Banquet A 5P-7:30P Banquet
Mon, Dec 11 | Cheetah Girls AH | IIM Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Cheetah Girls AC Banquet B 6P-10P Parent’s room
Cheetah Girls AC Banquet C/D 6:30A-9:30P Backstage catering
Tue, Dec 12 Available
Wed, Dec 13 | Available




Thur, Dec 14 | Available

Fri, Dec 15 Griffins vs Milwaukee GC | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Sat, Dec 16 Available

Sun, Dec 17 Available

Mon, Dec 18 | Available

Tue, Dec 19 Available

Wed, Dec 20 | Griffins vs Iowa Stars GC | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game autographs

Thur, Dec 21 | Available

Fri, Dec 22 Available

Sat, Dec 23 Available

Sun, Dec 24 Available




90/1T/11 swooy SunvsIy 30MOW =d-V NOW
-V 001940 AT = 4-V OY

@-V wooIied = -V 1Ivd eaIy A19][eD PUEID = DD
[[BH souewio}1dd soAd = Ad H-V swooy Suneay Joo[lea0 = H-V O
| J-V S[fEH qIpxd = D-V HA J-V swooy Sunosy A1[[en pueld = J-V O

T1VH SOAId JINNV -O189

AV JONVINIOLIEd INdO£:01-Nd00'8

$300d NVOIHOIN
NO %J0Q ¥d73dy4 AVA 11V 3000 NVOIHOIN T910H AVMINV
1-q3S0'1D A014I0

SR A

reoi

AV JONVIARIONIId Wd00:01-NdOE:L TIVH SOAId dINNV -D1d

S$A00A NVOIHOIN
NO JA00d d3Z3T44 AVATIV A00d NVOIHOIN Td1O0H AVMAV
dNNVITO WdOg:€-INdOE 1
HONNT Nd00:-Z1
anvd WVOL:11
SNIOFd WVID0Ud WV00:-11
S400da WV0L:01 a-v T1ivd
WOOY TAVI A'TIHD Ot 1-INV00-01 10D
WOO0Y d3dAVid AVATIV 400 LANONVE ONIAIDOSINVHL
00S1 “HONVANILLY "LSd | ¥ TVARNYV 49HD % LNII'TO WV00:9 SANJLSININ ¥ILLOYUL TIN

ONIAIOSNNVHI-GISOID FILI40

| _ET AON 'SMIHL

GONVMORIAd gl | WAOO:0T-WOE'L |

AV FONVINIONIAd (<1 JOE: - INd00:T TIVH SOA3d HINNV -OLd
S$A100d NVOIHIIN

NO A20Q ¥HZIid AVATIV AD0d NVOIHIIN T4LOH AVMIV
NAHOLEI OL SIX04 LOH 400t
TINLIVIIA 001
TVARRIY JF4LINNTOA WVSH8

dNids 4399 13NONVE ONIAIOSINVHL

J19V.L / JARNIYV LNAI'TD V0L a SHIYLSINIAN ¥3LLOYL TN

Y LLvE

22 AON gam

AV TVSIVAHTA JINNV NJ00:Z-INV00:01 TIVH TV.LIOTI TVSAVIHTY — OSUD
SP00A NVOIHOIN
NO JD00d ¥3Z3 T AVA 11V AO0d NVOIHOIN T4LOH AVMIAV
HONVINRIOJIIEd Wd00:01-INdO0t L TIVH SOAdd

I 220 PN QU R e el S A A B 0 e I

900T — ATAHIM
HIOVTESOCAEC



90/12/11 swooy Sumaa 0[O =d-V NOW
-V 30011240 19ATY = -V OY

-V wooIeg = -V TIve eary A19[fen puern =HoH
[feH 2oueuLIousd sOAdJ = Ad H-V swooy] Sunasy JoO[IsAQ = H-V O
T O~V S[IEH Mg = O-V HA J-V swooy 3unssy A19f[en puelnH = I-V D
SLIGIHXT a3y 1LO3roydd WdO0E-T-INV00:6 dH3
SARI YO4 vIIV ONIATOH Nd00:t-INV00:8 V HY
NOILLVILSIONE AT L.OFr0dd NV00:6 a-v Do
VIHALIHOLVTA 33440 AVA TIV-INVO00:L A990THSTAM
NOO0Y SSId Avd 11V 1440 MOHS T1Vd
NOLLVILSIOFNT 941LvDHITIq Avd TIV-WVSH:9 A9€9071 VIHODES

S— (1VEHNE NV IN

0001 “AONVONELLLY L83 L/ S L DL AON SRLLL

ALITVIIGSOH | WAOOTI-AVO0'8 | WOOMQWVOH |

N NOISSIS TVIINTD Nd00:CI-INV00:8 vV 11vd NVIING IV TN
ONILIFN JNV00:01-INV00:8 O-d NOW ONILIIN VVO
ONILFAN YIINIVd ONNOA Wd00:6-Wd00'8 VO
NOILJFOTH YTNIV A ONNOA Wd00:6-Wd0¢t:S a-d11ve
dNIgs g9y 10drodd Wd00:+-INd0t 1 g He
SONILIIN AVATIV 4-V 09 ‘3-V O ‘H-V O
SNOISSIS / SONILFIN WdSY:T1-INV00:L a-v1ivd
NOILLVYLSIOFY A1LvDATIA AVATIIV A94901 VIHDO3S
WOOY SS3dd AVATIV F01440 MOHS T1vd
VIY419HDLVTH 994407 Wd00:Z1-INV00-L AddOTHSTAM

0001 ‘FONVANFLLY "LSd

TVARIY LNAITO

NvIINg Wvd In

WV00:9 67 AON ‘ddm

Wd00:01-INV00-8

ONILIIN -V NOW INI'INOSTIOLS

1anONvd Wd00-:01-Nd0E:9 a-g711vd
NOLLVILSIOTY YIdNI N WdST:9-WdS TS ONNd4-d 1T1ve
HONN'1 AL (XA WooY@Ivod
NOILVYLSIOTY 41vOaTId AvaTIv Ag407T VIHOO3S
ONILITA FILLININOD AVATIV WOOYQIvVOod
WOOY SSTid AVATIV 901440 MOHS T1vd
dnias Nd00:9-IWV00:8 d-v 11vd ‘Ad9071 VIHOD4S
dN13S VI WV00:6
0001 ‘FONVANHLLY "1§3 TVARIEY LNAITD WV00:8 NVHING WIVd IN 8C AON "SANL
AVMINY @ ONILIIN NOOTId Wd0¢:T QIO A ATVYIO
INAITO
Ad dN13S WOOY SSTidd 466Nd00TL JO1440 MOHS T1vd

g VARV TDHAA L V00 (09D ALAE IS

~ LNOFAON |  NJOE:6-NdOE'S 3000 NOAT/ TTVH SOAA |
__JONVIHOAUAd | NdOE:S-Nd00:€ ___________TIVHSOAdd ______ __FINNY D1 |

JONVINNOLEAd NdOE: Y- IN00T TIVH SOASd JINNV -O1€ ST AON "LVS
900C — ATAIHM

HOVIESOASC




90/1Z/11

-V wooljeq = G-V TIvVd
[[eH 2oueulIo)Idd SOAd = Ad

swooy SundN 20IUON =1~V NOW
J-V J0O[19AQ 1#ATY = -V O

earTy AI19[[eD) puelD) = DO

H-V swooy] Sunsdy Joo[IAQ = H-V O

13 DV SleH 1qqxg = D-V Hd 4-V swooy Sunasiy A13[[eD pueld = -V O
100 AQOHdAYdAT WV00:T1
FONVA /A / JINNIA WdOE: 11-INd0E*9 a-0T11vd
YNOH TIVLID0D NJO0E:9-INdOE S ONN4-d 1T1ve
TVARRIY LNAITO Wdotv a-oT1ivd
TVARDYY LSRRIOTA Wd00:¢
00€ ‘HONVANFLLV 1S3 | [N TVARIYY (d Wd00:T1-INV00:01 AL¥Vd AVAITOH LIVAH IN'M
VYO0 / JINNI WV00:Z1-INd0E"8
STIVLAD0D NdO0€:8-Wd00:L
00€ ‘FONVANALLY 1S3 | ¥ S1S3ND / NOLLVILSIOHT Wd00:L ERAY VHd1V IHd VHdTV
anvd
/ NOILVINISTId / YINNIA WV00:T1-INd00:L qa-v 1ive
AUNOH TVIOO0S Wd00:L-Nd00-9 ONN4d-d 1T1vd
NOILLVILSIOTI Wd00:9-Wd0t:S ALYVd AVAI'TOH SYOTIAIAN
00, ‘HONVANILLY "LS3 | WA ARV LNAITD Nd00-¥ g-v 1ivd ANVTIOH ATTINNOA VNOVIA
1NO JAON WV00:1-Nd00:01
JONVINRIOIIAd Wd00-:01-NdO0t:L
N340 SY00d 3dISLNO Wd00:9
SMOHS DONINNL ONVId Wd0€:9-INd0t ¥

ZUIAO 000 “HONVANILLY LSS |

o DR A0, AT

| L AL

2000 L5 0]

NO D004 JIZa=dd AVva TIV A00d NVOIHIIN T9LOH AVAINY
ONILIEN Nd00:6-NV00:L ad-v NONW TVNOILVNYILNI IANIINOSTIOLS
NOISS3S 3LvOITId WdOE-TI-INVO0L:8 vV T1Ive
VINILIHOLVTY 39440A WdOETI-INV00:L AgdOTHSTIM
ONILITW FILLINNOD WdOE:TI-NV00:L Woo¥I@Ivod
WOOY SSTid WdOE-TI-INV00-L 401440 MOHS 11vE
NOILVYLSIOT ILVOITAd WdOE-TI-NV00:L A49407 VIHOO4S
LSvIAvaad WV00:8-INV00:L a-ga 11vd
0001 "HONVANALLY "L§d | [N TVATEY INAITO V09 NvRINd Wavd IN
JONVINRIOLIHd Wd00:01-WNd0t:L
SMOHS N3dO $400d 3AIS1LNO Wd00-9
TIVH SOA3d HVISSEN

T AIAO 000€ EONVANALLY LSS |

~ IVSYVAHT |

" Nd00:01-Wd00:L.

e -

Slirorle e

ONINAL ONVId Wd0E:9-NdO0t ¥ TIVH SOA3d
p:\4 NI JAON WdO00: I-IAV00:6 M00d NOAT/ T1VH SOA3d HVISSIN
LANONVE TVNNNV WJOE:6-NdSt:9 a-a1ivd
1NO-AVOTIN JO LSVL Wd00:8-Nd00:9 A94071 VIHOD4S
NVOIHOIN 4O 3LSVL WdS1:9-NdS1:§ Ag€07 VIHOO3S
NI-QVOTIN 40 9LSVL WdE€-INdOE T Agd01 VIHOOIS
1Nnoavotl WdO0E:£-INd0E T g He
TVIOOS WVEYO 301 Wd00:C-INdST 1 DO 1SIm
NOILOANYV LNITIS Nd0£:9-INd00:T1 DO LsIM
SONILITN / SNOISSIS WdSI:T-IAVST:6 a-v1ivd

9007 — ATAIHM
HIVTEFSOASCT




90/12/11 : suiooy Suneapy 01O =d-V NOW
J-V Y0O0[I9AQ 19ATY = 4-V O¥

-V woorfeg = d-V TIvd vary A1s[[ep pueid =9HD
[1eH 2oueuIolad soA3d = Ad H-V Swooy Sunsoy Joo[sAQ =H-V O
14 OV S[eH ¥qQuxg = OV Hd J-V swooy Sunasy A1s[jen pueld = 4-V O

~ ONLLFEN |

AV 430 do¥d dndd doi-d9 g-v Tivd TYANNY FOIAYIS OO NOTIOD
NOISSAS / ONLLIIN Wd00:+-INV00:6

07 ‘FONVANHLLY "LS3 | WA TVARIYV LNAITD WV0¢:8 ayvod 300304 % 3014 ‘AFHONVH ‘HLINS
AV FONVINIOJdId d0g£:6-d0tE L Ad 111 SdOd -OSyD

SNOISSHS Wd00:¥-Wd00: 139 49-V0D‘d-ID

TIONNOD FT1dVLIDIA NdOE: 1-Nd00-TL V 301440 MOHS

SNOISSHS Wd00:Z1-INV00:6 DV OO dVO
FINTIFINOD 30NA0Hd Wd00:+- V008 0odXxd
ONILSVL SYIAiO ONINNIM WV00:6-INV00:8 LTSRNV WV ANV 3T1aVLIIDIA

00S€ ‘HONVANSLLY "1S3 MOHS JAViL — LIGIHXH Nd00: 1-INV00:8 JV HA ‘LIMA STAVT L03d S¥NHL

AV NI HAON ds-vs8 Ad 111 SdOd -OSUD
SNOISSIS Wd00:S-Wd00-T dTIvd‘H-V 0D d-VD 0dxd
SNOISSHS Nd00:Z1-INV00:6 d1Ive‘H-V 0D 4V D IRV WIVd ANV 3T9VLIEDIA

005¢ :ONVANALLY 1S3 | 0¥ | ____MOHSHAVAL- LIEIHXd | __Nd0ES WVOO'8 | "LINNA SRV LVENO 9002 |9 0dd M

B

AV FONVIAIOITd Ad SAr 40 AVA TIOW ANO
F19VLANNOY LIDRIVIN IV Nd00:L-INd00:9 490D
TVIDOS SYALTAVIN NIV INd00:9-INdO0E:S H-D 0D
ASVOMOHS 1ddV WdOE:S-INdOE aTive
SONILIINW TYANNY WdS1:¥ 0o

SNOISSIS Wd00:-INd00:T a-OT11vd ‘H-V 0D ‘I-VvD odxd

SNOISSIS V00: 1 1-INV00:6 Q- O TIVe ‘H-VOD ‘4-VD ITNVIA WAV ANV 219VLIDTA

00S€ :IONVANALLY '1s3 | O¥ MOHS FAVYL - LISIHXT JNOE:S-INV00:8 J-VHE LI STV LVIID 900 $ O3d 'SANL
N 19NONVE wdgo:01 —wdgo:g g-v 11vd TWOH ANV TIOH
SNOISSES — TVARIYY LNIITO Nd00:1
"LSIOTA — TVARNIY LNAITO Nd00:T1 Do 0odx3
IAVEL-TVAINYY LNAI'TO NV00:01 O-vH4e 1TNIVIN WV ANV 319VLIIDTA

BT v o7 VE: ohE: 3 I R— A - __LINVASTAVILVENO 9007 | ____7 9 NOW |

S T
7 WFA0 000 “IONVANELLY "LS3 dn MOld INTWAINDE NIATVD N3IM1dg 3100 NOAT/ JOHS 3NEJS HVISSIN
0dxd

XINO LRIV ANV ANV 318VII03A
anasiNawaindd | | ovmal _______LNWISDIVIIVENO90Z |t RIS

1

ONLLIIN | Wd00:01-WV008 TYNOLLVNNELNI INIINOSTHOLS
9007 — ATddM




swooy Sunosy 0o =J-V NOW

-V JOO[IPAQ 19ATY = J-V OY

eoIy AIo[[eD puRID = DO

H-V swooy Sunesy Joo[eA0 =H-V O
J-V swooyf 3unagy A1s[fen pueld = -V D

90/12/11

q-v wooreq = Q-V TIVd
[[eH 9ouenIolad sOA9d = Ad
S DV S[leH ¥quExg = O-V HH

NOISSAS / ONILATN

-

~ WAOET-NJOET

.

05€-007 ‘FONVANILLY 1S3 | ¥A JARNEY INAITD INd00:S-INd00 ¥ J2T11vd SLONA0¥d 1STI0 TVSAIAINN
14 dNJiIs NJ00:S-AV00:L JVHi INFWNIVLIYTINT S1YOdS YJOLOW
TVSIVIHTY d01-dL
AV NI JAON d9-v§ Ad LITIVEADIOVIDLAN
MOHS WdS1:6-Wd00-L vV T11vd
NOOY OLNI S183NO WdSy-9 vV T1vd
NOILLdEOTH / NOILVYLSIOTT Wdot:s ONNd-d 1T1vd
dNnigs ONNd-d Wd00:1 ONNd-d 1T1vd TVNOILVNIILNI
0Sy ‘IONVANALLY 'LS3 | ¥ dNi9s MOHS WV00:9 vV 11vd SNOLLVIINNWNOD T3dS0D 11 230 'NON
AV HONVINIOTIdd d00:5-400:¢ Ad 111 SdOd -OSUD
d-v NOW
JVHH
@Ivod ‘4-v Od
H-V 0D
4-v OO ONILIIN
1N0 FAON WdZ1-NV8 a-v 1ivea TVANNY FIIAYES OO NOTHOD 01 23d ‘NNS
d00:01-d00-8
P\ FONVINIO1IEd d00:5-d00:¢ Ad 111 SdOd -OSdD
qILVYNILST a-v NOW
SINIL TTV JVHI
INFWNIVLIILNG VZi-dot:L @vod ‘4-v 0¥
YINNIA dote:L-d9 H-V 0D
ONILIIN d9-dt J-v oD ONILIIN
"LNOD NI SJAON TVANNY FOIAYTS d00d NO@IOD

§S *FONVANILLY 189 | ¥A ARV LNAITO Nd00: TIVH TV.LIDA F9970d ¥ 0N ‘AFHONVH ‘HLINS
AV HONVINRIOAEd d00:01-400:8 Ad 111 SdOd -OSAD
NOISS3S / ONLLIIN Wd00: - INV0e:8

NOILVALSIOFT WV0£:8-INV00:8 ONILIIN
$2-0S ‘FONVANILLY "LS3 | ¥A JARIYV LNAITD WVO0E L d-v NOW NOLLVIOJQE0D X3LNId TVNOILVN
0): ONILITN NJ00:T1 —IAV00:8 VO SAIdVY ANVYED 40 ALID

WVZI-Nd9 a-v NOW

WdOT — NdTL IV HI

WdOI-NV8 @Ivod ‘4-v 04

WdO1-NV8 H-V 0D
WdO1-NV8 4-¥ 09 ONILIIN
AV NI SAOW WdOI-NVS a-v1ivd TYANNY JIIAYES OOA NOTIOO
OdXd
LTRNVIN WV ANV 318VLIOFA

N NMOd AVIL Nd00:T1-NV00:8 OV HE ‘LINYAA STAVT LVIID 9002 8 03d T4

900C — ATAdIM
HOVTESOAECT



90/1Z/11 swooy Suysdy 30O =0-V NOW
-V J0O[13AQ 19ATY = -V O¥

-V wooxed = d-V 11vd vaIy AI19][e0 pueln =9HH

[[eH 2oueutojdd soAd = Ad H-V swooy Sunsap Joo[AQ =H-V O

9 DV S[leH 1quxgd = O~V HA 4-V swooy Sunas]y A19[jen pueid = -V D
N dN1asS Nd00:S-INV00-8 O-V HH INTFANIVLIFLINT SLI0dS JOLONW

IVSYVIHTI do1-dL
AV NI JAON d9-V38 Ad LI3TIVE-ITAOVIDLAN
AV TVSIVIHTA WJ0E:Z1-INV00:01 TIVH TV.LIOTY [01%:(9)
oM
__HOQRNOO FIIANIS T1vE _¥OARNOD FIAYIS WOOATIVE | 21 030 SIML

IWV3O0Ud ® JINNId Nd00:6-INd00-L
WNOH TIVIAO00D NdOE:S

900C — ATAIHM
HIOVRESOAEC

ALdVd SVIALSIHO




